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INTRODUCTION

This »tuay, excspt for a brieri historical summary, is
limitea to the last twenty-two years or the Libra:ry's history.
The first twenty-five years of the hiscory are covered tnoroughly
in « aetasilea paper by ¥Miss Mary Reed.* It is intenaea that the
preoent work ohould oupplement ana bring up-to- uate this
earlier work rathor then daplicate it.

I am inocbtea to Mise Reed for the wvasic organization of
this paper which is porrowecd 1rom her work. I telt that it
would better Serve as a2 supplement ir the basic pattern tollowea
logically that ot the earlier work,

I have used a great nany quotations thr sughout this paper,
both in the sections devoied to the study »f the community and
the history of the liwrary. I have done this in an effort to
show the more human side of tne situation and pecause I feel that
as l1mportant a: the acirual facts about a comaunity and its
liprary are the ideas that the people hold aovout their city aad

its institution.

Rewa, Mary Martha, History of The Lakewood Puplic Iibrary,
Lakewooa, Ohio; The First Twenty-Five Years, 1915-1958,
Master of Iibrary science paper, Western Resecrve University,
school of library ocience, Septeaber 1958,




I. THE COMMUNITY BACKGROUND

More than any thing elsc the public library in america i
a social institution. Therefore, the study of any particular
public liorary is of little value unless it considers the-
community which that library serves,

The American public library is a socinal
invention designed Yor the preservation

and aissemination of certain cultural
products of the nation and the community...
The American society, extolling social
progress and individual iaprovement, set

up tne puolic library as an agency to
institutionalize opportanity for its citizens,
Just as other comaunity services become
ospecialized and centralized, so the puolic
library became the comaunity's depository

of knowledge, information, and entertainment
--in so far as theylare containea in

library materiale,

By 1812, Cleveland was on its way to pecoming 2 town at the
mouth of the Cuyahoga miver and a sizaole settlement had grown
up at the mouth of the Rocky rRiver, Until that date no
settler had been attracted to the lana in between, the land
that is now the city of Lakewood. In that year James Nicholson
tradea a clearing near Conneaut for a tract of timber land
near Clev.land. He acquired 160 +4cres in his trade. Later he
bought another 160. After this date the area gridually
attractea more 5ettlers.2 One of these men, Rutus Wright, was
linked with Rockport's early governaent and transportation. He
came to the area about 1816, purchaised about an acre of lana,
and put up a tavern where the Westlake Hotel now stanas on the
north-west side or Lakewoou.3

Until 181Y no one had nad time, with the clearins of land
and building homes, to worry apbout the lack of local government.
But people were growing tired of having the area known only
as Townsnip nNo, 7. ©On Feoruary 24, 1819 the county comuissioners

at Cleveland were petitioned and the district was officialliy



named '"Rockport." Notice of an election of officers was held
in Rufus Wright's tavern. There were eighteen offices to vpe
tilled and only nineteen voters, 4 The officers elected were
judges, trustees, overseers of tne poor, clerk, lister, and
tence viewers., This type of government served Rocxport tor tne
next seventy yeidrs.

In the early 19th century there was no road in any direction
west of the Cuyahoga River. Travel through Rockport was at
tirst over narrow paths marked by blazed trees and over 2 tfew
old Indian trails. In 180Y the otate government voted funds
tor a highway from Clevel=nu to the mouth of the Huron River.
Primarily intended as a post road, it followed the lake Ridge
west over the Lake Indian Trail and crossed Rochy River near
its mouth.6 In 1320 a stage line was established and Rufuo
Wright was instrumental in getting a better road from Cleveland
to Rocky River, As soon as roads luaproved popilation in
Rockport increabed.7

During the 1lo4U's therc was 1 influx of oettlers along
petroit Roaa 1rom New mngland and New York otate, By 1%+8
rockport had about ithirty families on Detroit Street.
between west 1l7th Street and Rocky River, All ta. original
log cabins haa bween replaced by frame or otone houses., Iilost
people earned their living from vineyards or orchards. Cleveland's
growing populations offered a ready market for their products.9

In 1874 fruit growers and ouilders out numbered all ocher
occupations. '"New settlers, attracted to Rockport because of
the fruit farms and vineyards, opuilt houses so rapidly that they
crowded ocut the very tning that attracted them.”lo There was
no need for Rockport to expand industrially because of the
phenomnenal growth of Cleveiand. This directly affected the
character of the comuunity. "Wealthy residents f Cleveland
had been attracted to the saouro as an ideal place for a
suuner retreat and many oeaatilful nouwes were built. Gradaally

the strip along the lake was losing its identity as a faraing



site and becoming a summner resort. Thus Rockport was already
setting the pattern for icts future development ac a city of

. 1

nomes,

In 1871 an election wus held for the purpose of joining
school subdistricts six, eight, and ten into ene schnool
district. There were nou dis-enting votes, so Rockport now

oo AR o . I TS -
became identified with 1ts own schnocl district. Rockport was
growing up. In the middle 1880's population was increasing and
community feeling no longer filted tne pattern of the townsnip.
In September 1885 a petition signed oy thirty electors was
presented to the county comusissioners for incorporation under
the name of Hamlet of TLakewood. It was granted in December,

3N i . ) . . 1
but a3 lawsuit held up official incorporation until August 188¢, 5

A pampnlet by Thomas A. Kniht, entitled Beautiful Lakewood,

in 1902, described lLakewood in this way.

In many respects Laxewood is as much a cicy
as a majority of the Lowns of the state,
Its population is in the neignvorhood of
5,000 with every prospect of naving twice
or three tlimes this number of inhabitants
within the next ten years. On the other
hand, it has none of tne disadvantages of
city life. The objectisnavle features
are left to Cleveland., [t is from tais
place Lhat tne Hamlet ootarns many of ner
necessities., There are 02 coil yards, no
lumber yards, no supply nouses to litcter
up ner oack yard and add a disaigresavle
side to Life. And yet thesze necessities
are Jotqinig as cheaply in Lakeswood as in
Cleveland.

This supports the findings of Edward L. Thorndixe in his study
of twenty-four American cities of which Iakewood was one. He
s3id of these suburban coanunities,

They are in some ways parasitic upon the
larger cities whicn they adjoin for the
income of many of their residents, for
entertainnent of certain sorts, and for
higzher ediacitlion, hospitals, and speclal
services. They can keep thelir wn
territory free from vice, and still have



convenient opportunities to indulge in
heterodox, vualgar, or viciocus propensities.
Residencial subirps are asylums or retreats
for good people to live good lives in, so
long as the vig city is there too, rather
than centers of irban life. ©On the other
hand, they are in some ways supoorters

and obenefactors of tne central c.ty.

They supply it with much of Lts professional
and managerial talent which enanles it to
earn its living. They patronize its
theatrical, musiczil and licerary ventures,

=
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At this time ILakewood had four grade schools and 2 high school
with 2 total enrolluent of /75 and twenty-four techners,

The town was alsc well equinped wilu caurches, having two
Methodist, an Eviscopal, 2 Congregational, Disciple,
Swedenborgian and a Roman Catholic,

On May 4, 1903, Lakewood was incorporated as a3 villace with
an approximate population of 3,500, Popalation growth was so
rapid that Lakewosod was soun Liwrger than many Ohio cities. Dn

; PR ; : ( 16 ,
February 17, 1¢11, it was incorporated as a city. The
population had increased cver 50k. No city in Greiter Cleveland
had grown so fast. There was no official city hall. The
Police and Fire Departments were coapletely inadequaite.
Policeusen on bicycles were no maitca fr speeders in Model T
Fords.,

In 1€11 the new Lakewood Chauber of Comnerce made headlines
when they claimed that tney would put tne town on a Metropolitan
footing.

Their puarpose was To take Laxewood wita
its 16,000 citizens out of its swaddling
clothes and put 1t in the garo of a
fullfledged city with a2 wide awake com-
mercial clubt., Thelr nactivities would be
devoted to keeping factories cut of the
city and eliminating dangerous railroad
croscings, They were all for paving
every car line and extendings west “adison
street car lines, estaolicning owoulevards
and a sewerage system and u4s.ng their
intluence to secure modern fire and p lice
equioment.,

City Council, the Chamcer of Comu=rce



and individual citizens were Ctaking

their new responsioilities seriously

and Lakewood was on 1ts way to becoming

1 well integrated community. They were
proud in those aays, just as they are
today, of their homes and well-kept lawns,
their scnools and cheir churches. However,
they bragged 2obouc tne clean fresh sir due
to no factories in this growing community,
so far from the snoke of Cleveland and cthey
were proud of tne fact that tney had voted
dry and there were no saloons within the
city limits,

Lakewood's growth was greatest from 1¢0U to 1$350 when tne
population increased from 3356 to 70,506. By 1¢30 Lakewood had
reached its capacity in population growth and as a city of
homes., Nearly all availaole land had veen utilized. I[ts
cnaracter as a saburban comuunity had veen establisned and
pecple bezan to wonder what the coming years would bring to

the city. In 194¢, Margaret Butler, in her Lakewood Story,

makes some observitions aboat the city's fucure,

What of the small homes and well xept lawns
that have won for tne city its reputation?
As they get older will they deteriorate to
the extent that a less desirable element
will move in? Or will the yearning to
preserve their city of homes be passed on
to the next few generations?.....

Today Lakewood is a good plaice in which
to raise a fanily, But it will not remain
that way oy allowing nature to take its
course, If we valae 1ts good things we
must worx co greuefve tnen, and we must
bepin TODAY,

The citizens of Laxewood did not imnediitely respond Lo
this call to action. Eairly in 1657, R:lpn M. Besce, vice-
president of The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company,
addressed the memoers of the ILakewood Chamver of Comue.ce.
"His factual, realistic and non-controve sial portrayal of the
imninency of Lakewood's deterioration in the future, resulted
in an imaiediate and optialstic desire Lo unite forces for a

sustained all--ut effort tou preserve and sive Lakewosod.'" The



Chamber of Commerce and the city administration orpganized forces.
Mayor Frank P. Celeste enlisted the help of 2 cltizens coanittee
of fifty couples to study the pruoublem. Jean Barrett was
appornted full time Director of Modernization and Operati»n
Lakewood was begun,

The Operation Lakewood program had many aspects. First on
the list came the $800,000 addition to the puaolic liorary. The
school board vacked oy 6,000 door bell ringers asked voters
for school levies to improve and malntain schools. These bond
issues were passed with an average of 70k approval. A new
city hall with new guarters for police auna fire departusnts
was built, Volunteers raised %855,000 to cuild a new joint
YM-YWCA. Under this prograa 13,360 home imppovements were made
with the value of building permits at a nigher level chan for
any ot her four year period in tne city's history. The averapge
price of homes sold increased 8670 while for Greater Cleveland
durings; the s2ue period the average dropped %$20. Also a good
sign, the number of homes s.1ld each year has dropped. In 1656
there were 912 homes sold and in 1660 only 7537. The most iupor-
tant parc of the Operation has been tne rejuvinatiosn of private
homes to combat signs of sld-age. As will pe seen later in this

paper the public library has more tnan shared in this upward
19

trend in the city »f Lakewood.



IT, THE BARLY HISTORY OF LAKEWOOD PUBLIC LIBRARY

The origins of thne Lakewood Public Library bvegan in 1915
when the lLakewocod PRoard of Fduc:tion appointed a comuittee to
explore the possibility of securing a grant from the Carnegie
Corporation for a livrary oiirldins. They wasre successfal in
securing a grant of buj,ouu.ao Some years earlier the Board
had begun putting aside wnoney and by tne time cf the grant chey
had accumulited the 59,728 necessary to purcnase the si1te at the
corner of Arthar and Delroit Avenues. + Charles W. Hopkinson,
arcunitect for the Board of Hducition, drew up the plans nd
construction was started in tne spriag of 1¢15.

Miss Roena A. Ingham, whc had been head of the Carnegie West
BRranch of the Cleveland Puclic Liprary, was appoinced liorarian,
She spent a year working in an eapty stoce selecting, purchas.ng,
and cataloging tne origzinal boosk col.=2ction. When tne library
opened on May 1¢, 1¢16 tnere were 10,06C volumes. During .ne
first year ©3,824 books were cicculated to 5,340 vorrowers.

During the first five years of its hisiory, the Library was
governed by the RBoard of Fduc . ti~on tar-ugh its library couauittee.
As the Library bec=amne more ictive, however, some other foirm of
adulnistration was needed. In 1920 the Onio General Aissenoly
passed a law wnich enaoled Boards of fducition to rid themselves
of library aduninistration by appointing Boards of Trustees. In
19821, the Board of iducation appointed seven citizens to serve
on the library boqrd.zz

The increase in the use of the Library kept pace wiih the
growth of the comuunity =and in less taan eisht years toe
building was inadequate. In Nevcecmber 1622, the citizens passed
a bond issue fcr $150,000 and later an addition:l 230,000 for
the enlargement c¢f the bailding. On June 3, 1924, tne enlarged
building was opened to the public wicth nearly dousle c¢» xu¢5y.25

In 1921, the first branch wis opened in 2 rented dance nall

2¢ the corner of Newnan and “Madison Avenuaes witn Miss Florence



Cottrell as librarian, Madison Branch wais aoved to ils own
building in Madison Park on Land donated by the city 1in 192€,
By this time the Library was operating branches it Lakewcod
High School, Emerson, Harding, and Horace Mann Junior High
Schools, and a number of puvlic and parochial elementary
schools., They also had slations at the Lakewcod telephone
exchange and Lakewood Hospital. Service for shut-ins was
started in 1937.

After twenty years of growth in 1936, tne Library's book
collection stood at 70,000 volumes, In this time the ILibrary
had eirculated 7,576,936 books. Mise Inrham had served the
Litbrary well during this time, With her death Dr. Mary P,
Parsons became head liorarian apout the time which asrks the

(9

opening of this paper.



ITI. THE LIBRARY'S GOVERNMENT AND FINANCIAL SUOPPORT

The form of government of Lakewood Public library has not
changed since 1921 when the Lakewcod Riard of Education appointed
the first seven citizens to the Board of Iibrary Trustees.

This action was taken under 2 law enacted ov the Ohio General

Assembly in 1920 enacling Boards of FEducition to appoint

. . . 2
trustees to administer tne school district libraries. 2

The "marked stabllity ooth in its structure and menpership”
which Miss Reed recorded in her histery of the library's early
years hac remained to toe present.aéIn 1949, Margaret Butler
said that the original form of organization still continued with
"the Board of Educition, appolnting new, or what is more usual
reappo.nting old trusctees as thelr terus exyire.“d?

With tne start of the period covered by tais paper, 1953,
Mr, Isaac S. Metcalf, tne second President, was in office. He
held tnis office until May 1951 when ne moved out of ¢ own for
business reasons, He was replaced by Mr. Anthony Poss, who had
been 2 memper of the board since l?jj.za The fourth and present
President of the Board of Iibriry Trustees, iz thae only woman
ever to hold the position, Mrs. Robert S. Cheheyl. She hnas been
a memoer of the Board since 1€53 and has served as secretary,
and chairman of the personnel and decorating counaittees. ?
The present membe s of the Board are: Mrs. kooert S. Cheheyl,
Frederick M. Asbeck, Mrs. Elden Bolds, Daniel E., Maloney, Mirs.
Giloert D. Nelson, Anthony Poss, 3and Isaac M. Stickney. s,
Ruth Angell serves as ClerK-tEEA&JrﬁF.BO

The last five years nave peen waong thne most aciive far
the Library and tne Board of Trustees, Resides iie dsual
activities of approving personnel, the vadget, and foraulating
of library policy, the Board succeeded in securing =2 ovond iscue

for $800,000 for tne expansion and remodeling of the main liorary

and the Madison Pranch.



In 1959, the Board of Trustees and tne Yead Tiorarian
parvicipated in an interesting study on lior:ry consolidation.

Robert D, Leigh in his "ubl.c Tdbrary in Lhe United States sees

this as 1 coming trend:

The movement for building larger public
library systems by consolidation, federation,
or voluntary =issoclation has centered atten-
tion largely on less popalous areas., It is
equally desiraivle 25 a direction for devel-
opment, however, in metropolitian regions.
As we nave seen, puclic liorary systems
whnichn cover thne whole metropoliian area
exist alnost nowhere in the United States.
The organizalion: of lior:ries under
municipal corporitlicns nere, as in less
populous 4reas, mitigate. asainst complete
coverage of the area, and volintary
cooperatiocn to provide an inteprated service
for the whole metropolis® has seldon been
carried out. PRuct 3 posling of resources in
large urban areas has 3s much pr.omice of
economy as 1n rural reg1-ns.5l

The Metropolitan Service Comaission conducted a study of tne
libraries of Cuyahoga County. A Study Comnmittee of board
presidents and librarians was organized to work witn the METRO
staff, Mr. Poss, President of tne Roard, and Mrs., Bloom,

Head Tibrarian, were appointed ta this committee, The METRO
staff made a 1ormal recomaend itlon that the libraries of tne
county be consclidated. The Study Comuittee did not concur,
however, stating that their informaction was not sufficient for
any conclusions.

The source of supp rt for cthe Library nhae also remained
constant during this period., In 1934 tne Inlo Legislaiture
passed 2 pill, backed by tone late Sen tor kowvert A, Taft,
which changed the support of puolic livr:ries froam real estite
taxes to the procreds of tne classified propertv tax fund or
as it is more popularly xnown tne intangibles tax. This tax
is distripated oy tue Cuyanoga County Budget Comulssion oa a
county wide basis and it required that libraries receiving

support extend their secrvices to all residents of Lne county



In accord with this tne Trustees voted:
That the benefit of the lipr .ry services
of the Lakewood Public ILior:ry shall be
extended on equal tersme Lo all the
inhabitants of Cuyahoga Coanty, Ohio,
excepting to tne inhapilants ¢ sub-
divisions maincvaining a puolic liorary
which is participating in the proceeds
of the elassified property tax.
In practice, however, tne services of tne Tibrary nave oveen
extended to all residents of the County, regardless of wnelner
. ; s 54
or not they lived in 1n area served by anciner puulic ilorlry.)
In addition to this income, Laxewood citizens passed 2
bond issue to enlar e wnd aodernize tneir liorary ouildings.
Tntil 195¢ tue cost of operating cthe school lioraries was
shared by the Roard of Educ:tion and ctne Iiprary. Since 1659,

in compliance with an Ohio Supreme Churt ruling, tne cost has
. " = 35
been borne entirely by the Board of Fducation.””



IV. THE PHYSICAL ORGANIZATION

The most notable development in this period of the Library's
history was the completion of the remodeled burlding in 1955.
long before any concrete =action was taken to iaprove library
facilities memoers of the comununity began to realize the problems
of overcrowding in thneir liorary. Much of the credit for this
r=slization on the part of Lakewood's citizens must ve given to

the editor of the local newspaper, The Lakewood Post. On July

14, 1950, the paper carried the following editorial:

Many of us are apt to take libraries for
granted. Time wis wnen membership in a
library association constituted 2 marwk of
distinction. LaLer as the endowed free
public liorary idea reached a2 cliamax

through benefactions of Andrew Carnegie and
other practical pailanthropisus, comnunities
fortunate enouyn to possess outselandlng
lioraries touxk unde standaovle pride in these
institutions. Civic vooster literatdre was
Oy no means unknown 1in those days and
material of tnis sort invariably empnasized
library facilities when there was justification
for doing so.

But as maintainence of adequate lioraries
through tax funds became an accepted responsi-
pbility of progressive communities, there came
an understandable tendency on the part of the
average citizen to regard his liorary in
much the sane way as he regarded other puoplic
functioning. He and his nejghbors used the
puvlic library more and wsore and were, perhaps,
dimly conscious of the fact tihat the community
library was becoming soure us=ful both in its
service to nhiu and in the extention of icts
facilities oveyond limits accepted in tne days
when most puolic libraries were practical
forms of charity. But as good libraries
became tae rule ruwher than tne exception,
citizens in general became less awaire of the
progress that wais bein, made s¢ consistently.

It was vpoln inevitavle and right taat cae
library take its place wita otner furams of
municipal fanctiouing. PBut 1t 1s orchwnile
to realize that tpe pablic ilibrary 2as we know
it today did not just happen. ItL came avout
largely througn evolution of what way, in ali



propriety, be called a science that has the
s . & TR A R ZE
extension of usefulness of the printed word,.’”

The Post continued to give tne Library a great deal of

publicity, as had alwaiys been its policy, and in Januacy 1652,
it began a serious printed campaign to secure improved
facilities for the Library. The following is a sample of the
type »f edit rials printed at tais time.

Despite a loyal, coapetent scaff and a
conscientious Board of Trustees it must

be increasingly apparent to any oojective
observer that Lakewood library is failing
to realize fully the possioilities inherent
in the development of the comaunity., The
pasic fault, of course, does not rest with
personnel,..The whole and the snort of the
matter is that the library urgently needs
more rooam both to make readily available
more bocks and to provide otaner services
which are properly the respunsivility of

a public library in a community such as
Lakewood s«

In the opinion of The Post the fiture of
Lakewood library is a first thing. Ve
think the Poard of Trustees should proceed
conservatively. But we think meuavers
should proceed. With all r:spect to the
earnest trustees who have devoted time and
effort to library aduinistration over the
years, the fact remains that there must be
an ever increasing unrealized potential of
service which cculd and snould ve rendered
oy Lakewcod liorary unless essential expan-
sion 18 definitely charted now and realized
as sosn as practical,.’?

The Board of Trustees was far from unaware of cthe proolen.
It was agreed, houwever, thait 1t would ove advisable to walt
to present a bond issue to the citizens of Lakewood until
the programs of the RBoard of Education and Lakewood Hospital
: . b 1s)
were completed and scme of tneir vonds retired. However,

there was a pgreat deal of ground work for the Roird to do

before tney would be ready to present a bond issue.
Barly is 1953, the bu.lding cousittee, consisting of

Isaac M. Stickney, Dr. Peter J. Warren, Mrs, Charles 2., Delano,

3 o~

and Mr. Fred M. Asbeck, vegan working on .lans for a new



building and suomitting =2 ODond issue. Mr. Ralph A. Ulveling,
Director of the Detroit Public Iibrary and s noted authority
on library buildings was eaployed as a specialist to advise thne
Board. He made a prelininary survey of the needs of the
community and then recomuiended to the Board the modernizing
and enlarging of the present building. He presented detailed

39

plans to be studied before selecting an architect. Stickney,
chairman of the obuilding committee, was gquot.ed as saying:

Mr. Ulveling has undertaken to design a
layout which wouald provide an attractive,
functional, modern library building, -ne
wnich would render complete and efficient
library service.to the community for the
next 25 or 30 years, BEconomy of
construction now and of operation and
maintenance in the years to come has been
kept in mind.

This plan would increase actual floor space by fifty percent
and usable space by seventy percent, In May of 1955 the firm
of Garfield, Harris, Robinson, and Schafer of Clevelind was
engaged as 1rchitects.qo This firm had also planned the
University Heights Branch of the Cleveland Hei:hts Public Library,

lthe Law Iibrary at Western Reserve University, and the new wing
at the East Cleveland Fublic Iibrary.,

The vond issue received active support from the citizens of

Lakewood. It wis supported by The Lakewood Post, the League

of Women Voters, tne lakewood Women's Club, tne PTA, and 1any
other groups interested in civic weLfnre.42 A citizens
committee, organized to promote Lhe gond issue, sent soveakers
to variocus orginizacti ns in the cu,nuunity.qj In November 1€33%,
the citizens passed tne $300,00U Bond 1ssue for the expansion
and rehabi litation of tvhe Lakewoud Puviic Idbrary by a sixty-
six percent majority. Thnis sane wond i1ssue was alsu to cover
the future remodeling of the Madison Branch. The fimal cost
of the remodeling of tune main branch cost $625,000. The
balance was later used to remodel Madison Hranch.uq The con-

struction contract wis awarded t>» the Sam.W. Emerson Coioany.



The work began in October and took nearly elignteen months to
c:l:l_J'_l_ea;e.u5 The building was closed for one wonth to allow
for teuring down the front of the ouilding to permit the
addition of the new wing.“é

When the building recpened, although they were restricted
to two-thirds of tne former floor space, the staff made every
atteapt to keep service as usual. The only entrance to the
building was 2 voard walk on the Arthur Avenue side of the
building. For nearly eighteen months the staff and public
mingled with constraction workers in the noise and deC.47

In July 1955, the ILibrary again closed fur one weew to
move books into the completed new wing Which wauld be used
while tne old section of the bu.lding was beinz modernized.
This modernization of the old bailding necessitated tearing

4O

down of many umecessmry walls ind an ornamzncal staircace,
Inspite of the hectic conditions in 155 the Iibrary circulated
over 425,000 books.

dpen house to celebrate the completed modernization and
addition was held January 16 through January 21, 1956. This
also uarked the Library's fortieth anniveruxry.5o The new
facilities increased tne open snelf space for vooks from

51

60,000 volumes to 185,000 volumes.” The comgleted building
was quadruple the size of tne original Iibrary. Fortunately
the old building had relacively sim.le lines and since tae
stone used on the new wing was very siumilar to tnat of the
original it was difficult Lo distinguish opetween the old and
new sections of the tn.xildj.n»_;.;2

The interior of the new ovuirlding was decoraited and
furnished in a very atctractive modern style and arcan ed in
the following way.

First floor:

Ada1lt lounge and part of the adult collection--
philosophy, psychology, religion,
sociology, 2ducition, econcuics, travel,
literature, history, biography, and fiction.



Young People's Room--
popular reading collection for high scho)l
students and young adults

Roys' and Girls' Room--
collection of books for children from pre-
school a,e through the ninth grade

Office of the Cnildren's and Schools' Department--
which adninisters the twelve school branches and
the cnildren's roums at the Main and Madison
branches

Circulation Desk

Roard Room, Aduinistrative Offices, Adult Education
Office, Bindery and Mending rooms.

Second floor:

Reference Room

Vertical file

Modern maazine racks for current issues and a
magazine ST 1CK area

Drder and Catalog Departments

Music listening Hoom

Staff lounge and locker r-oms

Typing Room
for patrons who wish to use their own portable
typewricers

Lower level:

Auditorium
Meeting Room -
Small kitchenette 22

The Board of Trustees and tne staff are especially proud of
the enamel panel by tue Cleveland artist, Xenneth F. Bates, in
the Roena Inghan Garden Alcove on the first floor, The artist
named the panel "Midsuumer in Onio" and described it "as a free
form enamel of flowers, ferns, and outterflies indigenous to
this region. Measuring 40 x 54 inches, it has been inlaid in
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wood matching the wood paneling of the alcve," Mrs, Robert

S. Cheheyl, chairman of the Decorating Comanittee of the Board
of Trustees made the following statement about the lior.ries
intericr.

Because Lakewood is a comuunity of hoaes,

we have sought to make the Library's

interior a gracious, beautiful and home-

like place, as well 215 a useful center for

the people of Laxkewcod. Thies enamel is
intended to complete the design., We felt



that the cholice of tne flower theme was
an especially happy one since tne panel
is the center of interest in the memorial
alcove wilch houses the Library's unusual
and popular colloction of books on
gardening.”55

The Library staff and Board are also proud of their well-
kept grounds for which they have received two awards. In 1958,
they were given tne Indastrial Landscape Award for public
buildings in 2 contest sponsored by the Garden Center of Greater
Cleveland, the Cleveland Cnamper of Comusrce and The Cleveland
News. The Library was the first public puilding to receive
this award since the previ»us contests had been limited to
industrial and office buildings. [n recognization of tnis
award a obronze plaque was presented to the Liorary.56 Two years
later in 1960, the saue group presented another award ta the
Iibrary for the excellence of its landsacpe maintenance and its
well-kept lawn.57

As stated previously the bond issue passed in 1953 was
12lso intended te finance the remodelling of the Madison Branch.
The remodelled buiplding with an addition which included an
auditorium was formally opened in Jctcbe: 1956, altnough the
work was completed earlier in the year.s&

In addition to the main library and its Yadison Branch, the
ILibrary also operates twelve scnoul tioraries in cooperation
with the Board of Education. Th=se are l.cated in the three
junior high schools and eight elementary schols in Lakewood.

A branch is also 1aintalned at Lakewood Hospital to serve the
staff and patients at the hosgpital. The librarian in charge of

this service visits tne hospital and circalates a opook truck

cC

two afternoons a week,”’



V. THE BOOK COLLECTION

In Building Iiorary Collections, by Carter ana Bonk, the

authors state that "...the most iaporcant job of the lior.rian

ﬁjﬂ the selection of tnose ovooxs which he judges will pe pest

o . 60 , : ;
for nis liorary." The gualicvy of tnis buox selection aosre than

tnhe size of the collection deteruines tne usefulness of the

library.

Each book exanined requires the exercise

of careful judgment, integrity, emoticnal

control at cimes, and scrupulous honesty,
guided always by a sense of purp.se...ln

the building of a library's book collection
the determination of objectives is tne most

important fundanental in the selection

process, The wisdom 3nd judgment exercised

at this point will ultimactely deteraine
whether a library five years hence will
be little mare than 2 subsidized mediocre
book-sture following the dictates of the
natural popularity of some subjects plus

the popularity induced by advertisings of

publishers, or will be an iastrument in
the puolic educational structure, which
pravides books that in a meaningéul way
are beneficial to the community. 1

The annual report for 1958 quoted part of a roport by Mr.

Daniel Hagelin, Head of the Reference Department, which stated

the goals of book selection for nis department., Mrs,

Bloom

found thie report "illustrative of the continuing work chat is

done on tae pook collecivion in 21l departuents.”

I. To maintain as far as funds allcw a
continuing selection of materials to

meet Lnose comiinity needs and desires

that are the responsibility of our
department anc Lo reflect witn soue

degree of cumnpleteness the activities,

interests, institutions, and public
spirit of Lakewood.,

IT. Our aim is not only to meet present
needs and demands but Cto anticipace
as far as
of our patrons.

pissiole the future demands



III.

Iv.

'

To set high intellectual standards for
our collections with the purpose of
helping raise the general educational
level of the comamunity and providing
rich fare for the keener minds amnong
the general reading public,

To achieve and maintain up-to-dateness

thrsughout the collection as far as
funds perait.

To maintain a Erompt supply of recent
pablications, 62

In commenting on the aovove goals, Mrs. Bloom said:

The

of ¢
vary
diff
grou
same
lior
info
of ¢©
r=1la
r2sp
from
whic
for

goals outlined above have been those

he Reference Department. OQbjectives
for each department with the

erences in subject material or in age

P, but the basic principles are the

. The professional staff of the public

ary must know tne educational and
rmation-using aspects and potentials
he community, must know ponks and
ted macerials, and wmust take the

onsioility of selecting and crganizing

the vast mass of puolishing that
h is most reliable andé most valuaole
it.

This is the closest thing I could find to a formal book selection

policy ever issued by the adainietration ~f the liorar

y.

During the period covered by this paper the size of the

book collectiun incrcised by over 75,000 volumes.

Year Volumes
1939 83,749
1945 99,579
1947 108, 004
1957 140,015
1958 147,023
1959 154,095 ¢y
1960 160,534

When the libr:ry first opened in 1¢16 there were 10,000 books

in the collection. Toeday there are over 160,000 inciuding the

largest reference, art, business, and technology colle

on the West side of Greater Cleveland.

book collection,

pe-iodicals.

At

65 In

addition t©

ctions

2 the

the library regularly rece ves five hundred

the opening of chis period, in 193¢,

the library



added a limited number of books in Braille and Talking Books
for secvice tu the blind.66

During tne war precaution was taken to protect the records
of Lakewood's early history. Photostatic copies of pictures
and manuscripts in the ILibrary's historical collectisn and in
City Hall were made to assure their preservation. The original
documents were kept in Lakewood and the c¢opies stored in
another city.s? In 1942, Lakewood Public Ilibrary was selacted
as one of 1200 libraries in the United States as a denonstration
War Information Center. Each month bulletins, pamphlets, etc.
were sent to tne Iibrary dealing ai?n various aspects of Cne
war progran and civilian Jrfense.”S%

The Library has received numerous gifts. Most of them
were small but two of them are especially interesting. In 1941,
a collecti n of books on flowers and gardening were presented to
the Library as a meacrial to Roena A, Ingham, the first head
liorawrian. The pooks w2re purcnased with gLfts given to a
comiittee appointed oy the Board of Trustees t. arrange for
the memorial. Mrs, Howard A, Byrns, cnairman of the committee,
said:

",..it is appropriate to the spirit of
Miss Ingham's service and influence tnat
this memorinal may be kept alive by the
continuous support of those who knew her
and those who share her interests and
enthusiasa,"

Gifts were received fro. foruer Tioprary staff and board meunbers
from as far away as Maine, Florida, California and Haw=aii.
Gifts came from individuals who weres friends -f Miss Ingham and
the Tibrary and from aany civic, religious, educiti nal and
recreati nal groups which had ceen encouraged oy fiss In_—,ham.69
In 1¢54, ctne Tiorary received an unusul gift from Mr. George

E. lLindstrom, autnor of the History of Lakewood., He presented

the ILibrary witn a collection of material on Presidenits of the
United States and their fanmiiies wnirch ne nad spent ten years

gathering. The material incladea =2 brief ociocgraphical sxetch



on each president with emphasis on little known facts and an
unusual collection of pictures. The Iiorary had the material
bound and placed 1t in the reference ro;m.70

A music listening room, which was planned when the new
building was designed, was opened to the puvlic in 1658, Two
high fidelity record players were installed in an attractively
decorated listening room and the collection was opened to anycne
who had a library card. Although the collection is still too
samll tc meet all the demands made on it, including those of
the music appreciation group meeting at the library, they
eventually hope to have 1 large encuzh collection to permit
circulazl;n.7o In 1959, Alfred Dor~d pr-:sented 277 new clasuical

71

records to this collection. In 1960, chere were %65 music and

72

language aloume avalliable fur use oy tae public.



VI. THE ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE AND PERSONNEL

Dr. Mary P. Parsons bacame nead liorarian in August 1938,
shortly before the peginning of the period covered oy tnis
paper. She replsaced Miss Roena Ingham, who had been librarian
since the Liorary opensd in 1916, Dr. Parsons was a gradaale
of Smith College and New York State Iibrary School. She had
served several years in the reference department of the New
York Public Tdbrary and nad organized and ueen regident director
of the Paris Iibrary Schoel to instract Buropeans in American
library methods. &She had conducted classes in library instruction
at McGill University in Montreal and the University of Michigan.
Under Dr., Parsons the Library structure became more definitely
department 1lized. One example of this was in Business-Technology
section., Mrs, Elizabeth Waird came to the Library in 1038 ta
build up the new business-tecnnology. When the reference liprarian

left in 1943 the two departunents were comvined and Mrs, Ward o=caane

head of Reference, Business and Tec:lrmul_.-‘gy.';'L+
During World War II the Library experienced sericus provolenms,

In 1943, the County Budget Comuission cut the Liorary's operacing

funds and the Trustees found it necessary to cut the number of

staff hours. Tney did tais by ceasing to fill vacancies left

by people resigning to ge into war work. This caused a

shortage of about 300 hours a week and the library was forced

to shorten the number of hours they were open to the puclic.

Mr. I. S. Metcalf, tnen President of the RBoard of Trustees,

issued a statenent to the pecple of Lakewood.

We cannot cut deeply into 2 book fund
already too small, for a puplic library
cannot justify its existence unless it
buys the books the public needs. We
cannot cut salaries in the faice of rising
living costs and <rowing taxes,

Ne racognize that praccic lly every
service crganization in tne country has
veen compelled to retrepnch in ooth cne
scope and gaality of its perforaince out



we are reluctant Lo take This road,

The library will continue to do the

best it can for Lakewood and we pelieve
tnat vest will be pretty zood. We want
Lakewood to understand why it isn't better.

To help relieve the situation the lakewood branch of the

American Women's Voluntary Services enlisted more than twenty-

five women to give part itme volunteer work t» the Iibrary.

These women were given 2 short training program as an introduction

to the Library policies and practices by Dr. Parsons. They

did work such as mending, paging, secretarial work, filing,

and indexing. The AWVS also took over tne delivery of library

books to 5hut-ins.76
In September 1643, Dr, Parsons was -ranced a year's leave

of absence to take an assignment with tne Office of War Information

in the South 'Pacific. The following year she resi ned in order

to continue working with the _library in Wellington, New ﬁealand.??
When he returned from military service in 1645, Mr, George

Grill, who had been secretary-treasurer of the Roard of Trustees

for twenty-five years, replaced Dr, Parsons as aead liprarian,

His period of service was the shortest of the four head liorarians

in the history fo the Library. In April 1948, he was firced to

resign because of ill h:aalcﬂ./d The present head librarian, Mrs,

Mary Beeman Bloom, came to Lakewood Public Library as the srder

librarian in 1940, She had 2 o .cx;round in puablic, high scnool

and the niversity of Michigan lioraries, Later she wae

appointed assistant librarian aad in 1948 she replaced Mr. Grill.7g
Inder Mrs. Bloom tne liorary experienced rapid growtn after

the construction of thne new building. The number of persons on

tne staff increased 11.8% from 1¢53 to 1¢57, During this saiae

period the professiovnal =taff increased ¢L. With tne coapletisn

of the new building a new posltiovn was created, Head of Adult

Educ ition and Puolic Relations, whicn will be discussed in

greated detail i1n the section devoted to the Library and the

public.8o In 1960 the staff was as follows:



Staff-professional full-tiae part-tine

head librarian 1

assistant librarian 1

head of adult education 1

order 1

cataloging 1 1

reference 4 3

children's L 2

young adult 1

adult 4 3
total at main 18 —9*_

schools 7

Madison branch 2 1 81
total for systen 27 10

The young adult department wis also creited during this
peri»d. In 1936 Hiss Francis Gria vegan devoting thircty hours
a week to young people's work. In 1649, ®she wis reovlacea oy
Miss Jane Ann Ellsurom.dz This department aims to aild ctne young
adult in recreational reading and in school assignanents. Toe
present young adult librarian, Mr. Gene Yatch, meets regularly
with the liorarian at Lakewood High School to coordinate the

S . ) 33
facilities of the two libr:ries.



2o

VII. THE LIBRARY AND ITS PUBLIC

While the original purpose cf lioraries may have teen
merely the collection 2and preservation of graphic records,
public libraries in the 'Inited States nave added as additional
concept to their purpose. This new goal may be paraphrased as
follows:

The library aims to oecome an integral
part of the incellectual and cultural
life of the couuunity in order to serve
as a center of reliavle information;
stimulate self-education; promote the
growth of individuals in their personal
lives and as cicizens of a democracy;
and encourage tne creitive use of
leisure cime,

In assuming this role tne library takes on the caaracter of a
social institution, defined by Lowell Martin as, "an integrated
pattern of human relationsnips established oy the comnaon will
and serving some vital human need.“ﬂh

The relationship between the library and the comaunity it
serves are extremely difficult to record., 2Relying entirely on
statistics of circulation, registered boerrowers and o6ther
neasurable data ignores the vital human guality whcih is essential
to the relaticnship. This paper records the statistics and
other relevant date and wnen ever possible I nave attempced to
show the human factors and the atmosphere of this integration
through the use of guotations.

Circulation can registration statistics for the period
covered by this paper reveal some lnteresting trends. Some
conclusions can obe made from the following saunples.

Number of Registered Borrowers

1939 25,159
1945 18,202
1953 20,260
1957 28,552
1958 31,385
1959 32,097

1060 33,436



Circalation

1939 544,838
1945 385,711
1953 399,258
1655 425,000
1957 520,168
1958 572,566
1959 592,227
1960 613,489

During the first twenty-five years of tne history of the Liorary
both eirculati n and registration showed an upward trend. Regis-
tration reached an all time peak in 1¢38 and circulation reached
its peak during 1932 with 610,661 books borrowed.86 These figures
corresponded with the population growth of Lakewood wnich
inereased from 41,372 in 1620 to 70,50¢ in 1950.5? These figures
alsoc followed the trend caused oy the depression in libriries
1ll over thne country.

This upward trend did n:t c:ntinue. In 1¢45 circualation
reached its lowest point s.nce 1¢2.. Part of this may have
been a normal tapering »ff 2ter tne depression, but the war
was without doubt another influencing factor. In the Annual
Report for 1645, Mr. Grill exsresses his feeli.gs about the loss
in the numoer of registsred borrowers.

We feel tnat ctne loss was due T the

fact that so mny of the ooys and girls
were in the araed servw.ces and thelir
cards expired aad were cleared from our
files wnhen cne%glock of numvers was lLaken
ap eacn manth.

After the war there wis anoth-r slignt upward carve. But,
as the figures from 1953 show, this was small until the coapletion
of the new building which seemed to have a great effect on the
interest of the public., In 1655, inspite of the torn-up c)nditions
because of constructi:n the circculatin w: ver 425,000 oo oks,
In her Annual Repoart for 1937, Mrs. Blouom to k advantage of her
first opportunity to coupare statiscics in the rem deled
building with those of 1953, the last year under n ramal conditions

in vhe old building,



Registered Borrowers

1953 20,260

1059 28,552 (These figures do not include
borrowers at the school libraries who are not
required to register for cards, nor pers:ns

who use the library for reference purposes only.)

Circulatison

1953 1957 % of increase
Total 399,258 520,168 30,2
Main 231,198 340,776 47.2
Madison 39,907 504,957 27.6

Mrs. Bloom found that Iakewood PuoLic Library compared very well
with efther libraries in the country during this same period.

In approximately the same four year
period the increase in circulation for
117 public libraries all over the

country was 18%. The average circulation
per capita for those same libriries was
4,71, while in Lakewocod the oo Jksg
borrowed averaged 7.6 per capita. 9

The circulation figure for 1¢57 represented an averaige of
twenty-two books per family.?o In the annual report for that
year Mrs, Margaret Law, librarian st Madison Branch, maide an
interesting comment on service to families that applies t. the
main libr ry as well as the oranch.

One of the most satisfying features of
this branch is the rule tnat 1t plays in
serving entire families. To see both
parents and cnildren leaving the lLibrairy
with armloads of ovouks for everyone is
gratifying evidence tnat liorary uooks
play an iuportant pwt in fanily living
and reminds one of tChe statement of Mrs.

Annie Duff, who writes so vividly of the
shared reading her family enjo yed. She
said, "What we do in the way of exoloring

and makin, use of boouks brings harmony

and 2 feeling of reciprocal enj yment

inte our coupanionsnip; and to each of us
separately a deep delight and a sense of
vitality w«nd fulfillment." This opportunity
to serve an entire fauily at .nce in one

f the rgfxrdlng features of a suourbun
iiorary.



In 1960, after five years in the new building, tne circulation
had passed the peak it reached during the depression. This
represented a giin of 53% over 1953 and 244 over 1656. The
gain at Madison Branch since 1¢56 was nearly 40%. The total
number of books charged out in the first five years after the
modernization of the new building was 2,?90,000.92

In contrast to the increase in libriry use during this

period the populaticn of Lakewood showed a steady decline.

Population of tne City of Lakewood

1930 70,509
1940 69,056
1950 68,071 (7
1960 66,154 -

However, tnis does not necessarily indicaite that the citizens

of Lakewood were actually using their library more, because there
was a greit increase in use of the Libr iy by pepple outside

the community. The annual report of 195¢ showed tne following
distribution of registered borrcocwers at the Main library.

Residence of Borrowers

66 .4% Lakewood

12% Cleveland
7% Rucky River
% Bay Village

remainder scattered from other suburbse

In 1954, before the building was nodernized and expanded only
10% of the oorrowers were from ocutside Lakewood.

The same report revealed s.me differences between the “ain
and Madison Branches. A very saall percent of tne borrowers
at Madison come from cutside Lakewood. Also tne percent of
juvenile borrowers is just reversed at tne two Libriries. At
the Main Library 63% of the oorrowers are either adult or young
adult. At Madison RBranch, 647 of tne borrowers are juveniles,
The total number of juvenile brrowers for the entire system,
including the scnools, is_)}'i.g5

Statistics can tell a great deal but there are aany other

factors, much more difficult t- measure, wiici mean even more



in the integration of tune liorary and tne coamunity, This area
is tnat of pablic relaticns and service. In the Annual Report
for 1930, Miss Ingham, stated a policy which has oceen followed
by the library ever Bsince.

s+ Effort must be made to let the
community a& a whole know that there

is something to interest every mag, woman,
and child in the modern library.-

Every effort was wade to keep the public aware of their library
thr ough newspapers, boock talks, printed book lists, and
publicity leaflets. The Lakewood Post has always cooperated
with the library. There is rarely a week when this paper does
not carry an article or editorial on some prase of the liuvrary's
actrvities. The adult department has always z.ven pboox talks

to groups outside the lior:iry, In 1058 forty sJch talks were
gilven and Mrs, Bienstadt, head of the adult depwtment, made the
following; evaluation:

Perhaps we snall never ve acle to neasudre
the results of tnece programs in terms of
circalation for the lioriry; but we feel

that the good will wmd friendly relation-
ships establisned E¥ tnis activity are of
inestinable valie.”

In 1957, after the new building was ciipleted, a new position
was establisned., Miss Mary Reed was appointed Head of Adult
Education and Public °elitiJns.9d As head of public relacions
Miss Read continued to encourage lior iy publicity thr ugh
newspapers, book lists, and other communic:ti'n facilities.
Miss Reed stated her concept of adult educ tiosn in the library
in the annual report for 1G¢.)Y/.

If one of cthe specific ;. als of the ILibrary
adult educati-n programs is to discover
emerging educational needs, tnen cthe means

used to this end should obe flex.ble, closely
related to the participants' needs aud

somewhat exuverim-ntal, The inf . raal book
centered discussion grodp,with maximum
participation by taoce enrclleds,lends 1tself
very well to these ends, The high intellectuail
standards obtainavle in a saall purposeful



of this ~ind and the reliance on partici-
pants and volunte - r l:aders (a very practicil
¢ nsider icion with thne ILibrary's liiited
staff and budget) is als> in their favr.

For these reasons, during tne last two

years we have given these graups top

priority in our activities and I believe we
should continue to do thnis.

Among the groups wnich were sponsored 3t the library that year
were Great Books and World Politics discussion groups; Reading
With Your Family in cooperation with the Women's Associatisn

of Cleveland Colliege; Reading Skills in cooperation witn the
Lakewood Board of Education; a course of Latin America led by
Mary Hirschfeld; and sevecral groups for senior cicizens, The
total number of meetinge neld at tne libraries in 1950 was

694, an increase of 47% over 1957.99 By 1960 the number of
meetings held in tne uditoriums and meeting room at the Tibr vy
and at Madison RBranch numoered 837. 0Of these 69¢ were held at
the Main Library.loO The objectives of tnis department have been
sunmarized in the Report for 1050,

l. To respond immediately and sensitively
to the continuous learning needs and
interésts of aacure people in Lhe
community,

2. To stimul:ite the reading and discussion
of significant pooks to introduce the
challenge »f different viewpoints, =and
to encourage reflection and deeper

undersac nding of the maijor issues of
our time.
5. To wouse curiusity ind 1 desire to

learn, to enlarge horizons, to
introduce new experience, to afford
opportanicy for the intelligent

consideration ¢f perseosnal and social
problems, and to encouarage Lhe
creative use of leisure time.

b, To establish friendly relations with
leaders in the community ind ¢ id
them in prograa plainning Lar-ugh suach
rasrarce maiterial as a file of local

speakers, local film citalogs, etc.

5. To serve is av information center =.d
referral agency for aidult education
activities in tue Iiorary and in the
community.



6. To integrite tue Iibriry in the
intellectual and cultural life cf
the community by encouraging the use
of its 2auditoriua and meeting rooms
for educational, cultural and civic
purposes.

7. To make people increasingly aware of the
values their Iibrary »ffers tnem through
news stories, bulletins, etc.

8. To join and work with national groups
whose goals may serve to further the
educitional objectives of the Library.

01

Many of the goals listed above as those of Adult Educ icion
and Public Relations are also guals of the libriary as a
whole. The general reader guidance offered in all departments,
reference service, work with children and young adults, coopera-
tion with the Board of Education and sther comaunity agencies all
contribute to> the integration of the liorary and the
community.,

The joint administraticn of the schoel libriries previously
mentioned is a good exaaple f this cooperation, Iibrary instruc-
tion classes are held for all public and parochial scho:ls in
Lakewood, The Children's and Scho:ls Departaent 21ls) makes
classroom loans to all elementiry teacners in Lakewood. They
also sponsor summer reading prigr s for elementary children and

a pre-school story hocur, '"May Walks' are ar- annuil fir all

fourth grades in the public schools. Each cliss visits th=

library individually for a ¢ ar and an informal talk aoout
102

books.

Alchough no longer jointly aduiniscered the Library also
cooperates with the library at Lakewood High School. Mr,
Hatchs the Young Adult liorarian aeets regilarly with toe librarian
at tne Hign Schosl to coordinate facil.ities of their two
libraries, The Youny Adult department als. sponsors 1 Sumuer
Forum for high school and collzge age pe.uple in coopecation
with the Council on World Aflairs.

It iz evident that Lakewo:d Public library takes very

seriously its educitional purpose in acditi.n to ths collection,



preservation, nd adainistering -f materials. Robert Leigh's
description of the role now played by 2dult aducatisn in
public libraries applied to Lakewood:

The public library, then, has not become
either a major center of f-ormally organized
adult educition under its own initiative,

nyr does it serve as the officially designated
library for the existing agencies of formal
adult educ:ti>n. Nevertheless, to the extent
of its means, in terms »f materials and
skilled personnel, the libriries provide
sppertunity for many men and women
indiv.duaally or organized int. inforaal
groups to continue their edicition as
adalts. In tnis sense it furnishes the
essentl L library for the host of activities
and efforts wanicn nhave s aewnat rquaEB%cally
been called the people's univers.ity.

At a later date, in tne light of historical perspective,
this library will have to be judged, 25 will all public libruries,
by its contribution to society.
In the end, the library's c.ntribution
to American society must oe measared in
terms of ics effects and influence upon
that society, in terms of its c¢ ntribution

to the gradual toansformation of t he 104
"great soclety" into the "guod society.!
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